
 
Page 1 of 2 

 

 

 
 

 
AGENDA 

REGULAR MEETING 
CITY COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF COLMA 

Wednesday, August 25, 2021 
7:00 PM 

 

On March 17, 2020, the Governor issued Executive Order N-29-20 suspending certain provisions of the Ralph 
M. Brown Act in order to allow for local legislative bodies to conduct their meetings completely telephonically 

or by other electronic means. This suspension was extended by the Governor on June 11, 2021 by issuance of 
Executive Order N-08-21 which continues to allow for complete virtual City Council meetings. The purpose of 
these orders was to provide the safest environment for Council Members, staff and the public while allowing 

for public participation. 
  

Members of the public may view the meeting by attending, via telephone or computer, the Zoom Meeting 
listed below: 

 

Join Zoom Meeting: https://us02web.zoom.us/j/81289976261  
Passcode: 074407 

 
Meeting ID: 812 8997 6261 
Passcode: 074407 One 
tap mobile 
+16699006833,,81289976261#,,,,,,0#,,074407# US (San Jose) 
+13462487799,,81289976261#,,,,,,0#,,074407# US (Houston) 

 
Dial by your location 

+1 669 900 6833 US (San Jose) 
+1 346 248 7799 US (Houston) 
+1 253 215 8782 US (Tacoma) 
+1 312 626 6799 US (Chicago) 
+1 929 205 6099 US (New York) 
+1 301 715 8592 US (Germantown) 

Meeting ID: 812 8997 6261 
Passcode: 074407 
Find your local number: https://us02web.zoom.us/u/kco5bgxkcc 

 

Members of the public may provide written comments by email to the City Clerk at ccorley@colma.ca.gov 
before or during the meeting. Emailed comments should include the specific agenda item on which you  are 

commenting or note that your comment concerns an item that is not on the agenda. The length of the 
emailed comment should be commensurate with the three minutes customarily allowed for verbal 

comments, which is approximately 250-300 words. 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/81289976261
https://us02web.zoom.us/u/kco5bgxkcc
mailto:ccorley@colma.ca.gov


 
Page 2 of 2 

 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE AND ROLL CALL  

ADOPTION OF AGENDA 

PRESENTATION 

• Recognition of City Planner Michael Laughlin 

PUBLIC COMMENTS 

Comments on the Consent Calendar and Non-Agenda Items will be heard at this time. Comments 
on Agenda Items will be heard when the item is called. 

 
CONSENT CALENDAR 
1. Motion to Accept the Minutes from the July 28, 2021 Regular Meeting. 
2. Motion to Approve Report of Checks Paid for July 2021. 
 NEW BUSINESS 
3. ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT WORK PLAN FOR FISCAL YEAR 2021-22 
 Consider: Motion to Accept the Economic Development Work Plan for Fiscal Year 2021-22 and 

Establishing a City Council Ad Hoc Economic Development Committee.  
REPORTS 

Mayor/City Council 
City Manager 

ADJOURNMENT 
The City Council Meeting Agenda Packet and supporting documents are available for review on the Town’s website  
www.colma.ca.gov or at Colma Town Hall, 1198 El Camino Real, Colma, CA. Persons interested in obtaining an agenda via e-mail 
should call Caitlin Corley, City Clerk at 650-997-8300 or email a request to ccorley@colma.ca.gov. 

Reasonable Accommodation 
Upon request, this publication will be made available in appropriate alternative formats to persons with disabilities, as required by 
the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990. Any person with a disability, who requires a modification or accommodation to view 
the agenda, should direct such a request to Pak Lin, ADA Coordinator, at 650-997-8300 or pak.lin@colma.ca.gov. Please allow 
two business days for your request to be processed. 

http://www.colma.ca.gov/
mailto:ccorley@colma.ca.gov
mailto:pak.lin@colma.ca.gov


Minutes – Regular Meeting 07.28.21   Page 1 of 3 

MINUTES 
REGULAR MEETING 

City Council of the Town of Colma 
Meeting Held Remotely via Zoom.us 

Wednesday, July 28, 2021 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE AND ROLL CALL 

Mayor Diana Colvin called the meeting to order at 7:02 p.m. 
Council Present – Mayor Diana Colvin, Vice Mayor Helen Fisicaro, Council Members Raquel 
Gonzalez, Joanne F. del Rosario and John Irish Goodwin were all present. 
Staff Present – City Manager Brian Dossey, City Attorney Christopher Diaz, Chief of Police 
John Munsey, Director of Public Works Brad Donohue, City Planner Michael Laughlin, Senior 
Engineer Nichol Bowersox and City Clerk Caitlin Corley were in attendance.  
The Mayor announced, “Welcome to another of our completely remote Council Meeting. A 
few notes about tonight’s meeting: We are accepting public comments through email or the 
chat function—you can email our City Clerk at ccorley@colma.ca.gov or use the chat 
function to let her know which item you would like to speak on. Please keep your comments 
to 3 minutes or less. Thank you.” 

REPORT FROM CLOSED SESSION 

 Mayor Colvin announced, “No action was taken at tonight’s closed session.” 

ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA  

Mayor Colvin asked if there were any changes to the agenda; none were requested. She 
asked for a motion to adopt the agenda. 

 
Action: Council Member del Rosario moved to adopt the agenda; the motion was seconded 
by Council Member Gonzalez and carried by the following vote: 

Name Voting Present, Not Voting Absent 
 Aye No Abstain Not Participating  
Diana Colvin, Mayor      
Helen Fisicaro      
Raquel Gonzalez      
Joanne F. del Rosario      
John Irish Goodwin      
 5 0    

PUBLIC COMMENTS 
Mayor Colvin opened the public comment period at 7:09 p.m. and seeing no one request to 
speak, she closed the public comment period. 

 



Minutes – Regular Meeting 07.28.21   Page 2 of 3 

CONSENT CALENDAR 

2. Motion to Accept the Minutes from the July 14, 2021 Regular Meeting. 
3. Motion Designating a Voting Delegate for the Annual League of California Cities Conference 

in September 2021. 
4. Motion to Adopt a Resolution Approving and Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a 

Memorandum of Understanding Between San Mateo County and the Town of Colma and 
Authorizing San Mateo County to Provide Education and Enforcement Efforts for the 
Sustainable Food Ware Ordinance Within the Town of Colma. 

5. Motion to Adopt a Resolution Approving the Second Revised and Restated Joint Exercise of 
Powers Agreement for the San Mateo County Operational Area Emergency Services 
Organization. 

6. Motion to Adopt a Resolution Approving and Authorizing the City Manager to Execute the 
Agreement with the Archdiocese of San Francisco for the Donation of Land Fronting the Holy 
Cross Cemetery Property on Mission Road. 

Action: Council Member del Rosario moved to approve the consent calendar items #2 
through 6; the motion was seconded by Council Member Gonzalez and carried by the 
following vote:  

Name Voting Present, Not Voting Absent 
 Aye No Abstain Not Participating  
Diana Colvin, Mayor      
Helen Fisicaro      
Raquel Gonzalez      
Joanne F. del Rosario      
John Irish Goodwin    Item #6 Only  
 5 0    

PUBLIC HEARING 

7. F STREET RETAINING WALL IMPROVEMENT PROJECT – BID PACKAGE APPROVAL 
Director of Public Works Brad Donohue and Senior Engineer/Project Manager Nichol 
Bowersox presented the staff report. Mayor Colvin opened the public hearing at 7:20 p.m. 
Business owner Yvette Cortes made a comment. The Mayor closed the public hearing at 
7:24 p.m. Council discussion followed. 
Action: Council Member Goodwin moved to Adopt a Resolution Approving Bid Document 
Package and Authorizing Staff to Advertise Notice Inviting Bids for the F Street Retaining 
Wall Improvement Project and Authorize the City Manager to Approve Changes to the Plan 
Documents as Needed or Required; the motion was seconded by Council Member del 
Rosario and carried by the following vote:  
 
 
 



Minutes – Regular Meeting 07.28.21   Page 3 of 3 

Name Voting Present, Not Voting Absent 
 Aye No Abstain Not Participating  
Diana Colvin, Mayor      
Helen Fisicaro      
Raquel Gonzalez      
Joanne F. del Rosario      
John Irish Goodwin      
 5 0    

STUDY SESSION 
8. SENATE BILL 1383 OVERVIEW 

Sustainability Manager Kathleen Gallagher presented the staff report. Mayor Colvin opened 
the public comment period at 7:50 p.m. Resident Ken Gonzalez made a comment. The 
Mayor closed the public comment period at 7:56 p.m. Council discussion followed. 
This item was for discussion only; no action was taken at this meeting.  

COUNCIL CALENDARING 
The Regular Meeting on Wednesday, August 11, 2021 at 7:00pm will be cancelled. The 
next Regular Meeting will be on Wednesday, August 25, 2021 at 7:00pm and it will be held 
remotely. 

REPORTS  

 City Manager Brian Dossey gave an update on the following topics: 
 National Night Out will return in person on Tuesday, August 3 from 5:00 – 7:00 p.m. at 

the Colma Community Center. CAPE will be hosting a table to recruit for the new 
classes in September. 

 Summer Concerts will return on August 19 and August 26 at the Colma Community 
Center.  

 The Town Picnic will return in person on Saturday, September 11, 2021. 

ADJOURNMENT  

Mayor Colvin adjourned the meeting at 8:26 p.m.  

Respectfully submitted,  
 
 
 
Caitlin Corley 
City Clerk 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  





















































 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



Economic Development Work Plan   Page 1 of 3 

  

STAFF REPORT 
 
 
 

 
TO:   Mayor and Members of the City Council 
FROM:   Peter Ingram, Economic Development Advisor 
VIA:   Brian Dossey, City Manager 
MEETING DATE: August 25, 2021 
SUBJECT: Economic Development Work Plan for Fiscal Year 2021-22 
 
 

RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends that the City Council make the following motion: 
 

MOTION ACCEPTING THE ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT WORK PLAN FOR FISCAL YEAR 
2021-22 AND ESTABLISHING A CITY COUNCIL AD HOC ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 
COMMITTEE 

 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

In 2012 the Colma Economic Development Plan – Phase 3 Strategy & Action Plan was prepared 
for the Town by BAE Urban Economics.  The plan was intended to guide actions over the 
ensuing ten years, and laid out potential strategies in response to overall land use and urban 
design needs. 
 
The recommended work plan for FY 2021-22 is intended to serve as the tenth and final year of 
actions emanating from the 2012 plan, while effectively positioning the Town to set strategic 
direction for Fiscal Year 2022-23 and beyond. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 

None at this time. 

BACKGROUND  

On March 24, 2021 the Council held a study session and provided staff with broad direction 
based on the question, “What specific information will be needed by the Council to evaluate the 
General Plan Update’s potential effectiveness in enabling robust future economic development?” 
In addition to effectively setting a land use framework that encourages development that is 
desirable and economically viable for the community, partnerships and programs were deemed 
to be important to furthering the Town’s economic success. 



Economic Development Work Plan   Page 2 of 3 

On June 9, 2021 The Council held a second economic development study session that focused 
on the continuation, creation and/or re-activation [post-Covid] of economic development 
partnerships, programs and marketing strategies for the Town.  Outcomes of the session 
included: 

• Identification of still-relevant prior activities, ideas, and community outreach on which to 
build – emanating from the 2012 Colma Economic Development Plan prepared by BAE 
Urban Economics. 

• Desired activities and actions were discussed that could span across the next several 
years, and tied to the Towns’ on-going strategic planning process and the eminent 
adoption of the General Plan Update 2040. 

• Council provided input for development of a work plan for Fiscal Year 2021-22. 

ANALYSIS 

The proposed Fiscal Year 2021-22 economic development activities are described in Attachment 
A and are based on the following goals: 

A. Establish a City Council ad hoc Economic Development committee, in order to: 
1) Create programmatic infrastructure 
2) Provide guidance, support and input to the execution of the 2021-22 work plan 
3) Establish goals for FY 2022-23 and beyond 

B. Conclude, amend, add or discontinue action items identified in the Town’s 2012 Phase 3 
Economic Development Plan 

C. Advance related economic development activities delineated in the Town’s Strategic 
Plan, specifically: 

1) Adopt and implement the General Plan Update 2040 
2) Support expansion or relocation of existing businesses 
3) Develop a Colma branding campaign 

 
Council Adopted Values 
 
Considering enabling policies for economic development is consistent with the Council value of 
responsibility because it proactively considers policy that will enhance the Town over time. 
 
Sustainability Impact 
 
The General Plan and its policies related to economic development will promote sustainability 
since development will be in-fill in nature and encourage more walking, biking and transit use.  
 
Alternatives 
 
The Council could determine in the course of discussion that alternative approaches to 
economic development partnerships, programs and marketing strategies for the Town are 
desirable for subsequent study and potential Council actions. 
 
CONCLUSION  

The eminent adoption of the 2040 General Plan Update provides a unique and timely 
opportunity to strengthen the core foundations of long-term economic development in Colma. 



Economic Development Work Plan   Page 3 of 3 

With the easing of restrictions related to the Covid-19 pandemic, sharpening the focus on 
Colma’s land use tools and effective partnerships and programs are affirmative actions that the 
Council can take on this stated strategic priority. 
 
ATTACHMENTS 

A. Economic Development Work Plan for Fiscal Year 2021-22 

 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT WORK PLAN 
Fiscal Year 2021-22 

Attachment A to the Aug. 25. 2021 Staff Report 
 

 
 

        
 

 

  1 

 
INTRODUCTION 
 
In 2012 the Colma Economic Development Plan – Phase 3 Strategy & Action Plan was 
prepared for the Town by BAE Urban Economics.  The plan was intended to guide actions 
over the ensuing ten years, and laid out potential strategies in response to overall land use 
and urban design needs. 
 
Proposed economic development activities as described in the FY 2021-22 Plan are based 
on the following goals: 
1. Establish a City Council ad hoc Economic Development committee, in order to: 

1. Create programmatic infrastructure 
2. Provide guidance, support and input to the execution of the 2021-22 work 

plan 
3. Establish goals for FY 2022-23 and beyond 

2. Conclude, amend, add or discontinue action items identified in the Town’s 2012 
Phase 3 Economic Development Strategy & Action Plan 

3. Advance related economic development activities delineated in the Town’s Strategic 
Plan, specifically: 
1. Adopt and implement the General Plan Update 2040 
2. Support expansion or relocation of existing businesses 
3. Develop a Colma branding campaign 

 
For the purposes of this new work plan, specific tasks and work products are described 
below in blue font, under each of the 2012 BAE plan strategies.  The current status of each 
original action is noted in blue parentheses. 
 
 
WORK PLAN 
 
1. Strategy:  Refine Town Communications Program to Retain Existing 

Businesses 
This strategy acknowledges the importance of retaining Colma’s existing businesses.  
Colma supports businesses in many sectors, including consumer retail, auto retail, 
entertainment, and cemetery-related businesses.  These actions encourage local 
businesses to grow and expand. 
 
Action 1A:  Continue ongoing efforts to retain and expand the existing economic 
base 
Action 1B:  Conduct ongoing outreach to identify retention and expansion needs of 
local businesses 



ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT WORK PLAN 
Fiscal Year 2021-22 

Attachment A to the Aug. 25. 2021 Staff Report 
 

 
 

        
 

 

  2 

 
FY 2021-22 WORK PLAN: 

1. Restart Mayor’s business walks 
2. Restart Town’s business recognition event (target October) 
3. Continue City Manager’s regular meetings with cemetery owners / managers 
4. Review and refresh as needed the Colma web site “Business” tab 
5. Consider adding a business directory – look at examples from other small cities and 

towns 
6. Explore business newsletter and other outreach and/or seasonal events 

opportunities with Chamber (key on the value of networking and recognition of 
businesses) 

 
2. Strategy:  Strengthen Auto Row 

Colma's Auto Row is an important asset, and the Town wants to maintain its premier 
status in the Bay Area. 

 
Action 2A:  Convene an auto dealer's working group (Ongoing) 
Action 2B:  Deploy enhanced signage  
Action 2C:  Deploy streetscape improvements and freeway-visible signage (Tied to 
future Capital Improvement Program (CIP) budget priorities) 
Action 2D:  Facilitate joint auto dealership marketing program 
Action 2E:  Target new dealerships (Ongoing) 
 
FY 2021-22 WORK PLAN: 

1. Continue City Manager’s regular meetings with Auto Row leaders / managers 
2. TBD 
3. Explore current options for a new Town-owned and operated freeway sign 
4. Poll dealers:  Needs from a Town branding campaign? 
5. Ensure that the anticipated departure of the Acura dealership in late 2021 is 

succeeded with a brand new to Colma and complementary to the Auto Row mix 
 
3. Strategy:  Expand and Diversify Retail and Restaurant Sectors 

Colma depends on the strength arid vitality of its retail offerings to support the 
Town's General Fund revenues. Colma is underserved by restaurants and home 
furnishing stores, and is well-positioned to attract these retail options. 
 
Action 3A:  Coordinate with cemetery and auto dealerships to promote local 
restaurants 
Action 3B:  Maintain Town database on vacant spaces suitable for new retail and 
restaurant tenants 
Action 3C:  Work with property owners, the Chamber, and area brokers to attract 
new businesses 



ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT WORK PLAN 
Fiscal Year 2021-22 

Attachment A to the Aug. 25. 2021 Staff Report 
 

 
 

        
 

 

  3 

Action 3D:  Identify potential locations for development of new full-service 
restaurants (General Plan (GP) Update)  
Action 3E:  Identify potential locations for development of a new large-format 
sporting goods store 
Action 3F:  Promote key visitation data and general positive business climate 
(Ongoing) 

 
FY 2021-22 WORK PLAN: 

1. TBD 
2. Develop a property owners list and vacant spaces inventory (for internal use) 
3. Establish a commercial broker’s directory and network.  Develop a communications 

framework / vet with brokers. 
4. Engage ownership and management in solving vacancies and discussing future 

beneficial changes at 280 Metro Center 
5. Analyze sporting goods retail trends and compare with other larger-format retail 

(grocery, others) 
6. What are other small cities and towns in the region doing?  What can we learn and 

adapt? 
 
4. Strategy:  Accommodate Cardroom Expansion 

The Lucky Chances cardroom is Colma's largest employer, and generates substantial 
revenue for the General Fund. Its current facility is not large enough to 
accommodate all the tables it is licensed to operate, and its lease is set to expire in 
approximately seven years, The Town should initiate discussions about the 
business's long-term expansion needs. 
 
Action 4A:  Work Closely with Lucky Chances management to identify timing and 
space needs 
Action 4B:  Use GP process to identify possible locations for expanded cardroom and 
possible hotel 
 
FY 2021-22 WORK PLAN: 

1. Schedule a meeting with cardroom ownership / management prior to the adoption 
of the General Plan, and ahead of Town zoning update process.  Establish periodic 
check-in’s. 

 
5. Strategy:  Create Branding and Promotional Materials for Colma 

Community branding is a process of identifying community core values, strengths, 
key features, or creative concepts to describe the community for economic 
development purposes. 
 
Action 5A:  Prepare RFP and retain branding and marketing firm 



ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT WORK PLAN 
Fiscal Year 2021-22 

Attachment A to the Aug. 25. 2021 Staff Report 
 

 
 

        
 

 

  4 

Action 5B:  Create simple promotional materials and upgrade web site 
Action 5C:  Launch an expanded image and branding campaign 
 
FY 2021-22 WORK PLAN: 

1. Develop a General Plan 2040 roll-out, external messaging plan and best media 
vehicles to get to regional business and development audiences.  Write content, 
scripts, talking points, etc.  Set up a new web page. 

2. Consider adopting a Colma tag line to use ahead of a full branding campaign 
(example; “Visit / Shop / Eat / Rest / Repeat”) 

3. Conduct a marketing / branding needs assessment survey of businesses (Set aside 
$15,000 in FY 2021-22 Economic Development budget for specialized contractor) 

4. Draft a RFQ / RFP, along with a roadmap to FY 2022-23 start (assumes proposed 
CIP budget appropriation will be adopted in June 2022) 

 
6. Strategy:  Develop Specialty Retail/Entertainment/Dining district 

Based on market analysis for retail, restaurant, and hotel uses, the opportunity to 
develop a cluster of specialty retail (particularly home-furnishings) and 
restaurant/entertainment appears strong over the long term.  These categories were 
identified as leaking retail sales in the Colma trade area, offering the potential to 
synergize with regional retail shoppers already coming to Colma's extensive retail 
facilities. 
 
Action 6A:  Select location or target area through General Plan update process (GP 
in process) 
Action 6B:  Revise development standards to encourage a specialty retail and 
restaurant district 

 
FY 2021-22 WORK PLAN: 

1. Build focus on opportunity sites 
2. Zoning revisions follow GP adoption (Planning) 
 
7. Strategy:  Develop Hotel 

Colma's strategic location along 1-280, proximity by San Francisco and San 
Francisco International Airport, its attraction of cardroom customers from a large 
region, and its extensive draw for cemetery-related activities, all point to the 
potential opportunity for development and market support of one or more hotel 
projects.  Hotels not only serve to support other local businesses, but contribute 
extensively to local government tax revenues. 

 
Action 7A:  Select possible hotel locations through General Plan update process (GP 
in process) 
Action 7B:  Prepare RFP and retain consultant to complete feasibility analysis 



ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT WORK PLAN 
Fiscal Year 2021-22 

Attachment A to the Aug. 25. 2021 Staff Report 
 

 
 

        
 

 

  5 

Action 7C:  Update Town regulations to allow for and encourage the construction of 
a hotel (GP) 
Action 7D:  Seek voter passage of a long-term ordinance implementing TOT  (Done) 
 
FY 2021-22 WORK PLAN: 

1. Build focus on opportunity sites.  Develop a ranked sites list. 
2. Draft a scope of services for a feasibility analysis. 
 
8. Strategy:  Create Town Center 

The Town has long sought more local-serving businesses, which can offer open-air 
retail and a community gathering place.  Some have suggested a location near Town 
Hall for this concept, using a design which complements the historic City Hall and 
new Town Police Station on El Camino Real at Serramonte Boulevard.  This vision 
could create a “heart of Colma” at the crossroads of the two major streets, creating 
a mixed-use project with retail, housing and/or office uses. 
 
Action 8A:  Select possible Town Center locations through the General Plan update 
process (Done) 
Action 8B:  Analyze parking needs (Done) 
Action 8C:  Modify Town regulations to allow for this type of development and 
mixture of land uses 
 
FY 2021-22 WORK PLAN: 

1. Complete the adoption and implement of the General Plan Update 2040 (Planning) 
2. Commence zoning update (Planning) 
3. Conduct an internal brainstorming session to roadmap how the current property 

uses could change into the Town Center. 
 
 
FY 2021-22 WORK PLAN – OTHER TASKS: 

1. Set work plan milestones for pausing, evaluating and adjusting work plan elements 
across the fiscal year 

2. Determine feasibility, costs and benefits for updating key regional data and analysis 
from the 2012 BAE phases 1 and 2 reports 

3. Conduct targeted outreach to mixed use and hotel development firms – focus on 
opportunity sites 

 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  


	08.25.21 Regular Meeting Agenda
	1. Minutes - Regular Meeting 07.28.21
	2. Report of Check Paid - July 2021
	3. Economic Development Work Plan FY 2021-22
	A. Economic Development Work Plan 2021-22 (1)


